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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Custodial Services
Limited Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors Report ,but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conchusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
Xl respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
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financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read .
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance ,but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are

(nadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

§ date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
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cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;
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(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us:

il.

iil.

iv.

V.

Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
mentioned in note 2.51(iv), no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
mentioned in note 2.51(v),no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢} Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

[\r,}, m/)‘—

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

o
UDIN: 22102102AJHBUTT08 “CeDaciaoss

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2022
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited (“the Company™)
The information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and

records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
state that:

(i) (a) (A) | The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) | The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment and are verified by the management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years. In cur
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with the policy, the
Company has physically verified certain property, plant and equipment during the
year and no discrepancies were noticed in respect of assets verified during the year.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of use assets) or intangible assets during the vear ended March 31, 2022,

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the
requirements under clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five
crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of
the year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{iii) {a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and
conditions of guarantees to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has not granted [oans and advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
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the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d)

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e)

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liabikity Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ey

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv)

The Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a Company in which the
director is interested to which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013
apply and hence not commented upon. The Company has made investments/ given
loans /guarantees/ provided security which is in compliance to the provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act 2013,

)

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(v1)

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

(vii)

(a)

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service
tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been delay of one day in depositing of
provident fund dues in one month. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. As informed, the
provisions of sales tax, wealth tax, value added tax, excise duty and customs duty
are currently not applicable to the Company.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures
performed, there are no dues of income tax, provident fund, Goods and service tax
and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. As explained to
us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employees’ state insurance,
sales-tax, value added tax duty of custom and duty of excise.

The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise and value added tax, are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
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Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)

(a)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c)

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(x)

(a)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(b)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
ta the Company.

(xi)

(@)

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b)

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c)

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii)

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section [88 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the
Company.
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(xiv)

(a)

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b)

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the pertod under audit have been considered by us.

(xv)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi)

(a)

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Banl of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c)

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)

The Group has total one Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

{xvii)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year respectively.

{xviii)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditers during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xix)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed int note 2.49 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx)

(a)

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso
to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
2.45 to the financial statements.

(b)

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a special account
in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 2.45 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
I' Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

I

[\n;w("‘/'. M

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 22102102AJIHBU7708

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2022
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE Ind
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS CUSTODIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controf over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind As financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind As Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
. P g P g
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statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind As financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the I[CAIL

For S.R. Batilibei & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

b

per Shrawan Jaian

Partner

Membership Number: 162102
UDIN: 22102102AJIHBU7708
Place of Signature: Mumbat
Date: May 20, 2022




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Balance Sheet

[Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at Asat
Naote March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non current assets
{a) Investment property 2.1 155.10 -
{b) Property, plant and equipment 2.2 539.03 533
{c) Capitai work in progress 2.3 - 0.01
{d) intangible assets under development 24 - 112
(e} Other intangible assets 2.5 11,70 17.74
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 2.6 280,77 -
(ii) Other financiaf assets 27 191,75 2,318.15
(g) Current tax assets (net) 2.8 50,69 5.69
(h} Deferred tax assets (net} 29 9.35 2071
1,198.39 2,368.75
Current assets
{a) Financial assets
{i} Stock in trade 380,03 -
(i} Trade receivables 2.10 4,685.31 1,004.07
{fii} Cash and cash equivalents 2.1 5,013.28 1,059,131
(iv} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2.12 30,552.04 37,046.70
[v) Other financial assets 2,13 107.06 151.45
(k) Other current assets 2.14 94.52 38.40
Assets held for sale - 101.31
40,839,24 39,401.04
Total assets 42,037.63 41,769.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capitai 2.15 62.68 62,68
{5) Other equity 2.16 2,891.56 2,258.79
2,954.24 2,321.47
Non current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(i} Other financial liabilities 217 112.16 -
{b) Provisicn 2.18 20,17 19.02
132.33 19.02
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 2.19 225.78 90.14
{ii} Gther financial liabilities 2.20 38,645.98 39,130.54
{b} Other current liabilities 2.21 46.67 100.84
(<) Provisions 2.22 5.59 8.20
(d} Current tax liahilities {net) 2.23 27.04 101.58
38,951.06 39,429.30
Totzal equity and liabilities 42,037.63 41,769.79
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financizl statements 182
As per our repori of even date attached
For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chaertered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.301003E/E300005 (}\I
s } i
fevis € ﬁ Ske S
Shrawan lalan Udit Sureka Shiv Sehgal
Fartner Executive Director Director

Membership No:102102 DIN : 02190342 DIN - 07112524

andesh Sawant
Chief Financiel Officer

Mumbai Mumbai
May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022




Edehveiss Custodizl Services Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Revenue from operations

Fee and comwmission income
interest income

Rental income

Net gain on fair value changes
Total Revenue from operations

Other Income
Total Revenue

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation, amartisation and impairment
Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expenses: [refer note 2.32)
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit for the year from coatinuing operations

Profit from discontinued operations {refer note 2.48}

Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations {after tax)

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Iters that will not be reclassified to profit or less
Remeasurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit plans - gratuity (OCI)
Less: Income tax refating to stems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total

Total Comprehensive Income

Earnings per equity share {Face value of T 10 eath):

Basic and Diluted {INR)

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation:} {Face value of X 10 each):

Basic and Diluted [INR}

Earnings per equity share [for discontinued and continuing operation:} {Face value of % 10 each):

Basic and Diluted (INR}

The accompanying nctes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For 5.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP
Chortered Accountants
iCAl Firm Registration No.301003E/E3C0005

Shrawan Jzlan
Partner
Membership No:102102

Mumbai
May 20, 2022

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2.24 130.53 81.21
2.25 2,297.70 2,286,02
2.26 203.29 1.20
2.27 117.46 -
2,748,938 2,368.43
2.28 27.40 29.69
2,776.38 2,398.12
2.29 296.47 246.07
2.30 822.10 548.30
21,22&25 148.28 44.34
2.31 593.61 258.34
1,960.46 1,097.05
815.92 1,301.07
176.18 331.17
1173 [4.86)
628.01 974.76
3.48 104.50
0.88 26.30
2.60 7820
630.61 1,052.96
{1.48) (0.77)
(0.37) (0.20)
{1.11) {0.57)
629.50 1,052.39
108.20 155.53
0.42 12.48
2.35 100.62 168.00
1&2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Udif Sureka
Executive Director
DIN : 02180342

Sandesh Sawant
Chief Finanicial Gfficer

3

Mumbai
May 20, 2022

%\f@}}

Shiv Sehgal
Director
DIN :G7112524



Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation from continuing cperations
Profit before taxation from discontinued operations

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for
Depreciation
Impairment of financial instruments
{Frofit)/loss on sale of fixed assets
ESOP cost cancellation
interest expense
Profit on termination of lease
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase f (decyease) in trade receivables
Decrease / (increase) in other bank balances
Increase in stock-in-trade
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets
{Increase) / decrease in other non financiai assets
{Decrease) [ increase in lizbitities and provisions

Cash generated from / {used in) operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from / {used in} operating activities - A
B Cashflow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (Refer note 4)
Sale of fixed assets

Sale of non current investment
Purchase of investment

Net cash {used in) / geaerated from investing activities - B
€ Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of unsecured loan {refer note 1)
Principal repayment of leases {ind AS 116)
Dividend paid to sharehelders

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities - C

Net intrease increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 3%, 2021

816.15 1,301.04
3.48 104.51
819.63 1,405.55
148.28 44.34
(23.33) 7.27
{0.01) 9.38
3.25 -
51.55 14.53
- (9.82)
999.37 1,471.25
{3.657.92) 1,981.12
6,487.66 {17,750.42)
{380.03} -
2,235.99 (1,942.10)
(56.13) 434
(861.74) 14,238.55
4,767.20 {1,996.26)
{296.58) {373.86}
4,470.62 (2,371.12)
{165.05) (20.71)
39.90 50.28
- 628.94
{240.77} -
{365.92) £58.51
- (1,160.93)
[150.33} (8.14)
- {999.67)
. {14.53)
1150.33) {2,183.27)
3,954.37 {3,895.88)
1,059.11 4,954,99
5,013.28 1,050.11




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Currency : indian rupees in millions}

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Notes:
1 Netfigures have been reparted on accaunt of velume of transactions,
2 Component of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with banks
in current accounts 5,013.28 1,059.1%
5,013.28 1,059.11

3 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method® as set cutin indian Accounting Standard - 7 "Cash Flow
Statements” specified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

4 Purchase of tangible and intangible assets includes movement of Capital Work-in-pragress and capital expenditure during the year.

5  Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net cash inflow Houtflow) from operating activities [discontinued operations) 36.10 (15.57)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (discontinued cperations) {32.63) (35.75)

As per our report of even date attached

Far 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Birectars
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No,301003E/E300005

Lf& LAd &' f\\;(
Shrawan Jalan it Sureka Shiv Sehgal
Partner Executive Director Director
Membership No:102102 DIN : 02190342 DIN : 07112524

Ndesh Sawant
~ ¢ Chief Financiol Officer

Mumbai Mumbai
May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Statement of changes in Equity
{Currency : Indian rupees)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 62.68 62.68
Issue of shares during the year B -
Balance at the end of the year 62,68 62.68

B. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Securities Premium Deemed capital Retzined earnings Total
Account contribution - ES0P
Balance as at March 31, 2020 652.10 8.92 1,545.05 2,206.07
Profit or loss - - 1,052.96 1,052.96
Other comprehensive income - - {0.57) {0.57)
Total Comprehensive Income - - 1,052.39 1,052.39
Dividend to shareholders - - 989.67 995.67
Balance as at March 31, 2021 652,10 8.92 1,597.77 2,258.79
Adjustment of share based payments on lapsed /cancelled - - 3.25 3.25
Profit or loss - - 630.61 630.61
Other comprehensive income - - (1.11) (1.11}
Total Comprehensive Income - - 632.75 632.75
Balance as at March 31, 2022 . 652.10 8.92 2,230.52 2,891.54

For S.R. Batlihoi & Co. LLP
Chortered Accountants
ICA} Firm Registration Number: 3010063E/£300005

by

Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No:102102

Mumbai
May 20, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S+

Udit Sureka Shiv Sehgal

Executive Director Director
DIN : 02190342

DIN : 07112524

. Sandesh Sawant
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
May 20, 2022




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

1.1

1.2

Significant accounting policies

Company background:

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited ('the Company’) was incorporated on 16 Qctober 2008.
The registered office of the company is located at Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall,
Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (West}, Mumbai- 400070.

PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Limited is the Ultimate Holding company.

The Company is a Professional Clearing Member (PCM) of National Securities Clearing
Corporation Limited {NSCCL} and Indian Clearing Corporation Limited (ICCL). The Company is
also a SEBI registered custodian of securities who settles trades of clients and maintains a
record of client holdings and monitors receipt of corporate action benefits to eligible clients.
Other services provided include fund accounting services. (Refer note 2.48 for discontinued
operations of Custody business.) Company invests in fixed deposits & other highly liquid
callable instruments as part of its treasury activities.

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements:

The financizl statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{referred hereinafter as ‘Ind AS’} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 {ind AS compliant Schedule 11t}.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI} instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other
financial assets held for trading, which have been measured at fair value. The Company's
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR).

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time
elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of
the consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle
of 12 months.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet.
They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:
1. The normal course of business

2. The event of default

3. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

1.2

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements (Continued):

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs
directly attributable to the disposal of an asset [disposal group), excluding finance costs and
income tax expense,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable, and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it s unlikely
that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn.
Management must be committed to the sale and the sale expected within one year from the
date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-
current assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale
classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate
sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such assets (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

- The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or
disposal group),

- Anactive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if
applicahle},

- The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

- The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification, and

- Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once
classified as held for sale.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance
sheet.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either
has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

- Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

1.2  Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements (Continued):

Or
- Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the

statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 2,48. All other notes to the financial statements
mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and
expense during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from the estimates.

1.4 Revenue recognition:

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognized when [or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service {i.e. an asset} to a customer. An asset is transferred when {or as) the
customer obtains control of that asset. When {or as} a performance obligation is satisfied, the
Company recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price (excluding estimates of
variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation. The Company applies
the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

i identification of contract{s) with custemers;

il. Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

iii. Determination of transaction price;

iv. Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance abligations; and
. Recognition of revenue when {or as} each performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue recognition for different heads of Income are as under:

e Fee income includes fees for clearing services, custody fees & fund accounting. The right
10 receive the clearing fees arises when the trade is executed and a valid contract is
generated for the trade. All types of fee income is accounted for, on an accrual basis in
accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Company and the
counterparty.

e Interest income is recognised on accrual basis of accounting.

e Profit / loss earned on sale of investment is recognised on trade date basis. Profit / Joss on
sale of investments is determined based on the weighted average cost of the investments
sold.

e Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Trade exposure charges are recognhised on accrual basis.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in million}

1.5

Financial instruments;

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, except borrowings are initially recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place. Borrowings are recognised when the funds are available for utilisation.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financizl liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit ot loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and
the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit and loss when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company ciassifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost {(AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a businass model whose objective is

‘achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely
paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency ; Indian rupees in million}

is5

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
ate. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

Amortized cost and effective interest rate (EIR}

The effective interest rate is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
{including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts} excluding expected credit |osses,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected
credit Josses, to the amartised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at injtial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. .

Financial assets at fair value through profit or [oss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 105. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met, Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

e The designation efiminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or fiabilities or recognising gains or losses an
them on a different basis; Or

e The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; Or




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financizal statements (Continued)
Jor the yvear ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian rupees in million}

1.5

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(Continued)

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it
is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s} is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such
changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCi and do not get
recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL
is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account
any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument.
Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using
contractual interest rate.

Disclosure requirement of Ind AS 107-Financial Instruments:

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, group companies) at fair value through profit or loss, unless the
management has efected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be
measured at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32
Financia! Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries are carried at
amortised cost.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Cutrency : Indian rupees in million)
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line. The company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities
in current period and previous periad.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

s The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

¢ |t retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset {the 'original asset'), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual
recipients"), when al of the following conditions are met:

s The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients untess it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

e The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period
between the collection date and the date of reguired remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial asset (Continued)

o The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ahility to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that
ability unifaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified as Stage 1
for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be POCI.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantiaily different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
tender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Comparny records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all loans,
other debt financial assets measured at amortised cost together with undrawn loan
commitment and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial
instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. For the receivables which are highly
illiquid in nature, the Company may choose to disclose them as Stage 1l assets considering the
liquidity risk around it.
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the ‘Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest’ (SPPI) criterion and the business model test. The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how group of financial assets
are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the

assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of
the assets and how these are managed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)

regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liahilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values., ludgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, cosrelation and volatility.

Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the fiability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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Financial Instruments (Continued}

Determination of fair value

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unchservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based
on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement
date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities
with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are
binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Levei 2 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly ohservable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as
whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company
periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model
calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various technigues to estimate the credit risk associated with
its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
hasis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the

reporting period.
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Leases:
As a lessee:

The Company has applied IND AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all [eases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognises |ease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets;

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset on the balance sheet at the commencement date
of the lease {i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use}. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
tease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. in calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for lease payments made. in addition, the carrying amount of lease Habilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent cost incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount thereof when those cost meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above,
Repairs and maintenance are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold Jand and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives.

Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its
intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is
provided upto the date of disposal.

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is recognized in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the
year the asset is derecognised.

The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipfent
obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a
performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated
the estimated usefu] lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part
C of Schedule it of the Act for calculating the depreciation.

The estirmated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Class of asset Useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers and data processing units - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers and data processing units — End user devices, such as 3 years
desktops, laptops etc.

Intangible fixed assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.
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1.8

1.9

Property, plant and equipment {Continued):
Intangible fixed assets {Continued);

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangible such as software is amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful
life.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated
as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance
sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Investment properties

Investment Properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation and are
measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs.

Depreciation is recognised using Written Down method so as to write off the cost of the
investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated
useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of
any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at Banks, on hand and short-
term deposits with original maturities of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,
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Foreign currency transactions:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functionat currency of
the Company. Transactions in currencies other than indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefits:

The accounting policy followed by the Company in respect of its employee benefit schemes in
accordance with Ind- AS 19 — Employee benefits, is set out below:

Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognized provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each
completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable
at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits
vest after five years of continuous service.

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods.
Such benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets,
if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of services as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted
rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on Government
Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Compensated leave absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitiement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises
the charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account of such
non-vesting accumulated [eave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.
The cost of providing annual leave benefits are determined using the projected unit credit
method.
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1.13

Share-hased payment arrangements:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date. These include Stock Appreciation Rights {SARs) where the right to receive the difference
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the
ultimate parent company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Company. These are
classified as equity settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the 'ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments
over the vesting period, the Company treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each
instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deduciible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liahilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expecied to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or
back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable
that:
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1.14

1.15

Income tax expenses: {Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

= the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of
deductible temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward
or back; or

¢ tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the Fiability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realized in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written
down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

Good and service tax expenses:

The entity avails Input Tax credit {‘[TC’) of GST paid on various expenses incurred. Based on the
ratio of exempted turnover v/s taxable turnover of the entity, GST Input Tax credit is being
expensed off on a monthly basis to GST Expense a/c. Further, ITC on ineligible expenses {(on
which ITC is restricted under GST law} is also debited to GST Expense.

Earnings per share:

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind-AS 33 -
Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
cutstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.
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1.17

1.18

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be
remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.
Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses,
the Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the
matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current hest estimate. If it is no longer probable that the
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the
asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of
contingent liahilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

ludgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabllities within the next financial year.

(a) Actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit plans

(h) Assumptions used on discounted cash flows, growth rate and discount rate to justify the
value of management rights reported under intangible assets.

(c) Assumptions used in estimating the useful lives of tangible assets reported under property,
plant and equipment.

Standards issued but not yet effective: There are no new standards or amendments issued

but not yet effective.




3 0STT v0°S LTBE BE'ST EE'BE £8'9T 789 YE'DTT £9'E 9E'9pT [EE
- - - 8587 [%3 vTe0z - . 81701 - 8IE0T 25N Jo 1By
Ty PE'D - - 0ED +00 050 - - - 050 LIZIEIN
E6'E BO'6 w0's L5 FERY 1441 'L 289 233 S9'E 6002 » sindwoel
a1 £6'0 - 00T 93'0 €T Wi - o1z (zool £5E wawdinka 4o
030 150 - VL0 750 £0 a4 - vsT - S8E saunjxg pue nluIng
. - - Br'S 4R 98¢ - - 1Z'51 - we SDRACIdWY PlOYdTEd]
a{es 10, 3y 58 a|e5 10, ol 5e
ey | sy Py SO SS|HE pareiaiy, OAS  S0E J—
B U] pApN[aU| S05SY B U) papnju| 1355y
H20|8 19N MW RedW| PUE UCEP3:E0Q PAITAWNIDIY R0} 55045

H]BS J0) Pl $19552 Saphpuy ,

€0'6ET S0°8YT {30°s) 55 ZIGET [T 80'589 1z8'9] 95°8 6E'0L9 £8°91 18301
LE'DES S9'EEL - - SOEET - 29'899 . - 79899 - asn Jo wdn
- - - 6ED 500 vee . . (il . 050 apyop,
e bE0T (¥o's) ST'9 Loz 896 96°Z1 (zgal g 1870 [1:333 2 SEWeY
we €0°% - Fasi] 210 160 52T - 8T0 00 w1 wowdinba a0
Frou ] L6 - - Qo 50 TET - - - ey SAINIX|J PUE INILENY
42 zre - . e . ¥6'0 - . ¥6'0 . supwaneduy prayasest

D{ES IO} PROY S¢ B[S 10§ Py 5T

e | ey Py A T | ey, S e e s v

B U] pRpNpU| 1355y

E U] papnjau| 1355y

A2e1g 3en

uauriedul] pUE UOIERAITAG PALTINWNDY

%30]) $5015

Apmenb sonjudwe 73 s

Jualudinby pue Juesd ‘Auadosd b4

“uoyaesven yidua) 000 ve 1e poducydxs 3g pinod Auadord © yaymM Ja) JUNoWe patewnsa 0y uiaq ‘Sonjea 1R U0 paseq e sanjea Jley st "panies Juiag Alodoud Jo A10301ed pUC LOMEI0E AYY UT DJUBLIRGKS pUT LoneIenk
|evorssajosd pasiioras miepdordde Suaey Lanjea wapuaddpul [PeIa1xa Ag PRLL0HIY L33 SARY SUOREN|TA DSAYL SFANHIOUINE [eao) Aq paysyqnd 0321 Jouydas Apes: pue uoliednsaaul Jo 3Eqpads 1 sew ‘Anbua Aqueau |e3o| ‘pustuap g Alddns * Buiping Jo aj| {EnpIsas ‘BoNINASUCD jO

38 ) 'UCIIE30] 5B LINS S10138) SNOPEA UOJIRISPISUG) o3 Tuiyes panjea uang sey Auadosd pres Hu1 SUCHIPUOS 103IELU DM3RPLO3 8] 123[GNS D5J103 DHp WY WAL D5ods|p 0 SPUDILE PUE SIS DHT JO HONITJSALS Ul Avodeid [luapsp) jo uossassed ponnbae sey Auedwa?) a1

OE'S5T EV'E - - (%3 - ES'BST - - £5'85T - (eae),
DISST 14 - E¥E - £5'851 - - £5°85T - N3 [Eay
QEs JOJ iy SE TS 10 PRy SB
A ’ s

nwesy | tepnen  PWSDORmen o S e wn | ey PSR eyt sssy o voudion

W " TE— Hnp sjesodsia Ay o} sdieyd 'Sy TE YR IT SY £ 1) pagnpIU Stassy unp siesodsig Jnp suonIPPY pLE

A20I2 12N Rz jedl] pue uc|jepadag pasenRdIYy #4703 5504

Auatoad justuisasug 1z

[suomiw up soodns uzipul * A2 LNJ)
{PANUNLIOD] STUAWILIS [RPULKE DY) OF SDI0N

PAUEIT SIILAIAG JEIPOJSN)) SSIIMFIPY



ales 10} pjay) s1asse sopajyl ,

PLLT SE'FT 81’8k - 96°£2 09'vE TIZE 0528 - BO'LY 549 1810l

v BE'PT aTgr - g96°iZ 5 043 e 0578 - BOLY P9 » HEALIOG
3]E5 0] pIot| s& 3]E5 10 Pjoy SE
A A T gad A L¥] T nd
e uuwawum 3 b u“nu.n_.n..aa paipsse dnoud jesods)p au, ‘__“m“ num_.n_.—nm g .._m._m“m._n oﬂouun v + u.”nﬂomum 5! Palpssep dnoid |esodsip u::hnum nuh_.n_m m::-.__”umnufuuc. nwngmn Mﬁ Y siassy jo wondisaa
[EIERLES e e sy A ——— unp s i dyasopddieyd sy TE YI:eN B SY pA——— unp s i1 I nt
#20{8 10N UDWIEd W] PUT U0 ESIIMOULY PRIRINLLINIIY 3I0|g 5504

0LTT 9z°L2 {erav} S2'EY 85'8 BE'PT 96'8E {ng-zg) 55'T8 06’5 [43%43 ejo)

[Ty33 Lo {87'8p) 88°Er 85’8 8E'vT 96'BE {os'ze) 9571e 06'S TITE o DlEmjog
D[RS J9j PIoY S ) 3]ts 10} piot| 58 .
newmmeny | ey PUTRdEmn o SO0 s n | ey Pty SRSy e sy 0 wondyso
W € WP e sy © Ut papNPU; SIASSY Jnp 5| Jul 143 Jog Lh) e sy 'TE YPJRN Je sy © Uy PIpNpUY) $Y955Y ihp 5| 1a Hnp RIppY e sy
%2019 19N JUDUITEAE] PUE UDT ESI20LIY poIE[nWnIIY §3C|E 55019
£12s5Y DjqIAUTIL IO b4
T - - - [N - - - - - oL
T - - - FAS] - - - - - 7 95eld ERuauodx]
|Evel S123A £ UEyy dIo SIEah g7 SIBOA 2T JEoA T UEY1 5591 je1oL SITA £ UEL3 DJOLF SICOA E-7 SEIAZ-T JBIA T ueyy 5527
1o papad € 10} U0 ARD Japun asse qIFUEIL] U] JUNOLWY 10 pouad € 20} JURLKIG)FASP JapUN S135SE I|QIIUTIV) U] Junoty siepmued
TZOT "TE YW 18 5y 2207 ‘T€ YW 1E 5y
WinudoDASp Jagn $155E JpgqBueiug %3
00 - - - 100 - : - - - 16},
5D " T = 00 T T T T - YHEIG - RIOYESel
lejoL 523K € UGG 010N Sieak -2 BELES 1E3R T uey) 5531 [T SIE3A £ UCY) SIOJN SIR3A §-Z 1R0A -1 Jeak T ueyy ssa)
10 poliad € Jo) 55248010 uj y1om [elded U] Junouny 10 popad € 10} 55349018 U] F10A (E1]HET U] 1Unaliy signafstd
TZOZ ‘TE YMEA JE Sy TLOT TR USIEW BE Sy

552.80:d u) yiom |eyde) £
[SUoHHW up 5220 URIpY| t AXSARD)
{ponuUNUOD} SIUDWSIS |ePURUL DY) 0] 230N

PRI SAORAIRE {HPOISN.) SSRM[IPY



Edehveiss Custadial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued}

[Currency : Indian rupaes in miilions)

As at Mareh 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
face Vzlue Quantity Amount Face Value Quantity Amount
2.6 Investments
Others (sunquoted)
785 Cumulative Non-Covertible Redeemabie Preference Shares 10.00 23,500,000 240.27 - - -
{refer note 2.37)
Total 240.77 -
2.6A  Investments
As at March 31, 2022
Particular At amortised cost Total
240.77 240.77
7% Cumulative Non-Covertible Redeemable Preference Shares
TOTAL - Gross [A) 240.77 240.77
{i} Investments outside India - -
{ii} Investment in India 240.77 240.77
Total {B) 240.77 240.77
Less: Allowance for impairment {C} B -
Total Net {A-C) 240.77 240.77

There were no Investment as at March 31, 2021 is Nil
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2.8

29

2.10

Other financial assets - non-current

Deposits placed with exchange
Security deposits
Other deposits

Current tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes - non-current
{net of provision for tax % Nil, March 31, 2021 % Nil)

Deferred tax assets [net)

Deferred tax assets
Receivable
ECL provision on trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment and intangibies
Difference hetween bock and tax depreciation
Employee benefit obligations
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Others
Sub total A

Deferred tax liabilities
Investments and other financial instruments
Fair valuation of investments and stock-in-trade
Sub total B
Total {A - B)
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good *
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivable - credit impaired
Total (1}
Less : Impairment allowance {provision for expected credit loss)
Trade receivable - credit impaired
Total {H}
Total {k- H)

Other receivahbles

Other receivable - credit impaired
Less : Impairment aliowance {provision for expected credit loss)

* Secured by securities, fixed deposits and bank guarantees

As at As at
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
41,40 2,316.88
148.87 -
.48 1.27
191,75 2,318.15
50.69 5.69
50.69 5.69
2.15 8.02
3.93 6.35
6.48 6.34
8.78 -
21.34 20,71
11.99 -
11,99 -
9.35 20.71
4,663.95 955,90
2136 48,17
2.02 25.34
4,687.33 1,029.41
2.02 25.34
2.02 25.34
4,685.31 1,004.07
6.53 5.53
6.53 5,53
4,685.31 1,004.07
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2,10 Trade receivables (Continved)

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and lease receivables:

Particulzrs Amount
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified

approach

Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2020 24.80
Add/ {less): assel originated or acquired [net) 7.07
Impairment allowance as on March 31,2021 31.87
Add/ (less): asset originated or acquired (net] {23.32)
Impairment allowance as on March 31,2022 B.55

Trade Receivables aging schedule

Qutstanding for follawing perlods from date of transastion

Particulars tess than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 yerars 23 yeass Morethan 3 Fotal
months years

March 31, 2022

Gross receivables

i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 4,685,21 0,10 - - - 4,685,31

() Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have

significant increase in credit risk - - . - . -

(ifi) Undisputed Trade Recelvablas — credit impaired 0.51 217 0.05 - 7.82 8.55

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables i ¢ good - - - - - -

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have signiicant
increase in creditrisk - - - - - -

{vi} Disputed Trade Receivablas — credit impairad - - - - - -
Total Gross receivables (A} 4608572 0.27 0.05 - 7.82 4,693.86
| ECL provision an recelvables

1} Undisputed Trade recelvables — considered good - . - - - -
{ii} Undizputed Trade Receivables — which have

significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables -- credil i I 0.51 C.17 0.05 - 7.82 B.55
{iv) Dispuled Trade Receivables-considared good - - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant

increase in credil risk - - - - - -
{vi} Dispuled Trade Receivables — credit impaired - . - - - -
‘Total ECL provision on receivabios (8} 8,59 a,17 .95 - 7.82 $.55
‘Total recelvables net of provision {A - B) 4,685,219 .10 - - - 4,685.31

Quistanding for following periods from date of transacticn
Particulars Less than & & months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 Fotal
months years

March 31, 2021

Graoss receivables
i) Undisputed Trade receivables — congidered good 88,71 1.31 - B 0.83 90,85
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —~ which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -

(i) Lindisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 1.1% 0.62 1.88 0.01 6.53 18.15
(iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables—considered good £.01 556.69 356.52 - - 913.22
(v) Dispuled Trade Receivables — which have signilicant

increase in credit risk - - - - - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Recaivables — credit impaired - - 21.72 - - 21,72
Total Gross receivables (A} $9.83 558.62 38012 o 7.36 1,635.94
£CL provision on recefvables

i} Undispulad Trade racaivables — considered good - - . - - -
(i} Uncisputad Trade Receivables — which have

significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(it Undisputed Trade Receivabies — credd impaired 1.11 0.62 1.88 0.01 6.53 10,15
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivablog-considerad good - - . - - -
{v} Disputed Trade Receivabies ~ which have significant

increase in credit risk - - - - . -
{vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 21.72 - - 21.72
Total ECL provision on receivables {B) 1.11 0.62 23,60 0.01 6.53 31.87

Tetal receivablies net of provision (A - B) a8.72 558.00 356,52 - £.83 1,004.07
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millions) Asat As at
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021

2.11  Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-in current accounts 5,013.28 1,05%.11
5,013.28 1,058.11

2.12 Bankbalances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed Deposits with Banks 737.34 649.20
Fixed deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money or guarantees or 29,821.70 36,397.50
lien for bank overdraft {refer below note 2.124A)

30,559.04 37,046.70
2.12A Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company
i} Pledged with exchanges for meeting margin requirements 26,348.68 34,852.16
ii) Pledged with banks for obtaining bank guarantees as per sanction terms 3,438,12 1,545.34
iii} Pledged with banks for obtaining bank overdraft 34.90 -
Total 29,821.70 36,397.50
2.13  Other financial assets -current
Deposits placed with exchange 12,10 22.10
Receivable from exchange /clearing house (net) 92.82 123.42
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 2.14 5.93
107.06 151.45
2.14  Other non-financial assets
Input tax credit 25.71 121
Other deposits 0.05 0.25
Prepaid expenses 62,21 35.48
Vendor Advances 6.11 0.95
Advances recoverabie in cash or in kind or for value to be received 0.43 0.51
Advances to employees 3.01 -

94.52 38.40
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Equity share capital

Authorised :
19,000,000 (Previous year: 10,000,000} £quity Shares of Re.10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
6,267,500 (Previous year:6,267,500) equity shares of Re.10 each, fully paid-up

fMovement in share capital :

Asat

31 March 2022

100.00

62.68

Asat
March 21, 2021

100.60

31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,262,500 62.68 6,267,500 62.68
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,267,500 62.68 6,267,500 6268
Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/ar their subsidiariesf associates R
31 March 2622 harch 31,2021
No of shares  Amount % Mo of shares  Amount &%
Edelweiss Securities Limited, the holding company 6,267,500 52.68 100% 6,267,500 62.68 190%
6,267,500 62.68 100% 6,267,500 62.63 100%
Details of shares held by shareholders holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
No of shares % No of shares %
Edelweiss Securities Limited, the holding company 6,267,500 100% 6,267,500 100%
6,267,500 100%5 6,267,500 100%
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
%of tatal % Change during of total % Chanpe during
Promaoter hame No. of Skares shares the year No. of Shares shares the year
Edelwelss Securities Limited 6,257,560 100% - 6,257,500 1008 -
6,267,500 100% - 6,267,500 10058 -

Terms/rights attezhed to equity shares @

The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T 10, Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vote per share held. In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets af the company, after distribution of all preferentizl amounts.

The distribution will Be in proportion to the nurnber of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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{Currency ; fndian rupees in millions}

Asat As at
31 Mareh 2022 tarch 31, 2021

2.16  Aeserves and surplus
Securities premium reserve 652.10 652,10
Deemed capital contribution 8.92 892
Retzined earnings 2,230.54 15571.77
2,891.56 225879

A. Nature and purpase of reserves

2. Securities premium taserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium cn ssue of shares. The reserve can be utilised anly for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with she provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

b. Deemed capital contribution
Deemed capital contriblion relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its employee share option plan.

¢. Retained e2rnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company’'s undistributed earnings after taxes.

Asat As at

31 March 2022 March 31, 2021

Securities Premium Accouny 65210 652,10
Add ; Addittans during the year - -

652,10 652.10

Deemed capital contribution - ESOR 892 292
Add : Additions during the year - -

8.92 8.92

Opening Balance 1,597.77 1,545.05
Adjustment of share based payments on lapsed /fcancelled 3.27 -

Add: Profit for the year 630.61 1.052.556

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year {311} {0.57)

Amount available for appropristion 2,230.54 2,597.44

Appropriations:
Interim dividend - 999.67
2,230.54 1,597.37

2,851.56 2,258.78

PARYY ABAL
w

\
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Other financial liakilities- non current

Lease Liability

2.18  Provisions - non-current
Brovision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Campensated leave absences

2.19 Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and
smail enterprises

Trade payables due for payment

As at As at

31 March 2022  March 31, 2021
112.16 -
112,16 -

18.490 18.49

177 0.53

20,17 18.02

0.03 4,55

225.75 85,59

225,78 90.14

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years Mare than 3 years| Total
March 31, 2022
(i) MSME - 0.03 - - - 0.03
{ii) Others 193.40 31.66 0.37 0.31 0.21 225.75
(iif)Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues-Others - - - . - -
Total 193.490 31.6% 0,17 0.31 3.21 225.78
Particulars OCutstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Unbilled Lass than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
March 31, 2021
(i) MSME 3.92 0.63 - - - 4.55
(i} Others 53.97 28.83 2.54 0.24 0.01 85.59
(ii}Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
(v)Disputed dues-Others - - - - - -
Total 57.89 29.46 2,54 0.24 0.01 80.14

Trade Payables includes ¥ 0.03 million {Previous year: X 4.55 million) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payakle by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this Act. The afore mentioned is based on the
responses received by the Company to its inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Asat As at
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
220 Other financial liabilities
Unpaid dividends
Unpaid dividends - 3.51
Cther payables 11.86 3.71
Margin meney
Fayable to client [ret) 30,479.11 38,488.88
{Deployed in the form of bark balances and fixed deposits amounting to <
35,572,32 millions, March 31, 2021 % 38,105.81 millions)
Others
Accrued salaries and benefits 79.79 59.29
Payable to exchange / clearing house (net) 7,112.96 422.18
Retenticn money payable 0.03 -
Qutstanding expenses payable 128.43 152.97
Advances from customers 376.12 -
Lease liability 457.68 -
38,645.98 39,130.54
2.21 Other non-financial liabilities
Revenue received in advance
Income received in advance 0.02 0.02
Others
Statutory liabilities™ 46.49 59.48
Qthers 0.16 1.34
46,67 100.84
* Includes withholding 1axes, other taxes payable
2.22 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 5.01 4.57
Compensated leave absences 0.58 1.63
5.59 6.20
2.23 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation 27.04 101.58
{net of advance tax and tds % 1,386,20 milliens, March 31, 2021 ¥ 1,339.78 millions)
27.04 101,58
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2.24  Fee and commission income
{Service transferred at a point in tima}

Advisory and other fees
Clearing fees

2.25 Interest income
Interest income on deposits
Trade exposure charges

Interest income - Preference Capital
Interest income - Others

2.26 Rental income

Rental Income [refer note 2.40)

2.27  Net gain on fair value changes

Profit on trading of securities

Gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL
Fair value gain on stock-in-trade

2.28 Otherincome

Miscellaneous income

Far the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 parch 31, 2023
48,81 -
81.72 81.21

130.53 81.21
1,833.26 1,508.54
458.64 777.48
5.77 -
0.03 -
2,297.70 2,286.02
203.29 1.20
203.29 1.20
74.33 -
43.13 -
117.46 -
27.40 29.69
27.40 29.69
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{Currency : Indian rupees in milfions}
2.29 Employee benefit expenses
Sataries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.43)

Expense on share based payments - refer note below
Staff welfare expenses

Note:

For the year ended
31 tviarch 2022

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

272.62 230.93
12.78 8.67
3.19 3.32
7.88 3.15
296.47 246.07

1} Edelweiss Securities Limited has granted Employee Stock Option Plans ("ESOP") to the Group's employees on an equity-
settled basis. The Company has recognised share based payment expenses of X 1.37 miltien for the year ended March 31,
2022 based on fair value as on the grant date calculated as per option pricing model.

2} Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL") the company exercising significant influence over the Company, has granted
ESOP/ESAR aption te acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in @ graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on
policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cress charge and

recognised the same under the employee cost.

2.30 Finance costs
At amortised cost

Inzerest on borrowings (other than debt securities}
Financial and bank charges

Interest on Margin

Interest - others

Interest on lease liability

- 10.59
190.81 111.56
579.74 421.53

- 0.68

51.55 3.54
822.10 548.30
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2.31

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion (refer note 2.40}
Auditors' remuneration

Commission and brokerage
Communication

Insurance

Legal and professicnal fees

Printing and stationery {refer note 2.40)
Rates and taxes

Rent (refer note 2.36 & 2.40)

Repairs and maintenance

Elactricity charges {refer note 2.40)
Foraign exchange loss {net}

Bad- debts and advances written off
Provisien for doubtful debts

Computer expenses {refer note 2.40)
Computer software

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 2.45)
Clearing & custodian charges
Dematerialisation charges

Rating support faes

Loss on sale of of fixed assets
Membership and subscripticn

Office expenses {refer note 2.40)
Postage and courier

ROC expenses

Seminar & conference

Goods & Service tax expenses

Starmp duty

Stock exchange expenses
Transportation charges

Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

Usage of assets

interest on shortfall in payment of Advance Income Tax
Outside services cost

Auditors® remuneration:

For statutory audit fee

For imited review fee

For special audit fee

For certification

Towards reimbursement of expenses

Towards discontinued operations
Net total

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
20.60 7.83
2.37 170
186.96 -
1.27 3.25
0.18 0.22
28%.53 93.42
0.25 0.84
0.13 0.07
17.21 22.51
4,77 0.16
6.20 0.45
2.57 0.42
0.86 0.70
(23.33) 6.57
61.77 15.69
12.94 18.13
25.04 17.56
0.08 0.01
0.10 0.55
1.08 0.40
{0.01) 9,38
16.30 3.99
50.13 32.85
0.08 0.08
002 -
0.55 0.01
1.21 0.83
2.24 0.26
2.67 1.47

- 0.02
5.09 4.40
0.0t -

- 1.88
1.30 4,51
8.43 7.78

£93.61 258.34
0.55 1.12
1.05 1.05
0.90 -
0.05 0.15
0.00 0.01
2.56 2.33

{0.18) {0.63)
2.37 1.70
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2.32

2.32a

Income tax

The components of income tax expense :

Particulars As at Asat

March 31,2022} March 31, 2021
Current tax 204.96 363.23
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years (27.90) (5.76}
Creferred tax relating to origiration and reversal of 11.36 (.87}
temporary differences
Tatal tax charge for the year 188.42 352.60
Current tax (refer note 2.44b) 177.06 357.47
Deferred tax (refer note 2.44¢) 11.36 (4.87)
The incorne tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

As at! As at]

Partleulars

March 3%, 2022]  March 31,2021
Profit before taxes from continuing operations 815.91 1,301.04
Profit befoze taxes from discontinuing operations 3.48 104.51
Profit befare taxes 619.38 1,405.55
Statutory income tax rate 25.47% 2517%
Tax charge at statutory rate 206.22 353.75
Taxeffectof:
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years (27.90} (5.76)
Effect of income not subject to tax:
Deduction u/s 350 {1/5th of capital expenditure) {0.00} (0.01)
Effect of non—-deductible expenses:
Donpation/ contribution towards CSR - -
Interest on shortfall of advance tax 0.33 2.28
Interest on late payment of DDT - -
Interest on late payment of TDS - -
Purchase of mobiles phones debited to P&L 0.00 0.00
Donation - deduction under chapter VI-A {(Section BDG) 7.63 6.37
Employee stock option charges Q.81 -
Gratuity Expenses - -
Campensatad absences - -
Provision for doubtiul debts - -
Depreciation - {3.70)
Lease Payments {0.24) {0.31)
Others - -
Effect of utilisation of tax losses or deferred tax assels on - -
losses earlier recognised now considered not recoverable
Minimurn alternate tax on book profits {incremental portion} - -
Recognition of available tax credits (for example, Minimum - -
Alternate Tax credit)
Impact of certain items being taxed at different rates {for 157 -
example, capital gains at different rates, etc.)
DYA on gratuity - -
Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L 188.42 352.60
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2.32¢ The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Meovement for the period {2021-22)

QOpening deferred o Recognised in Closing deferred tax
tax asset f Recognised in other T
5 Total movement | asset/ (liability) as
{lrability} as per profit or loss comprehensive
. perind AS
Ind AS income
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 6.35 (2.41) - (241} 3.93
investments [poperty) - {1.13) - (1.13) {1.13)
Stock-in-trade - {10.86) - (10.86} (10.86)
Employee benefits ohligations 0.19 - 0.37 0.37 0.57
Gratuity and compensated absense 6.15 {0.25) - {0.25) 594
Provision on exnected credit foss 8.02 {5.87) - {5.87) 215
ROU Asset - 8.78 - 8.78 8.78
Total 20.71 {11.74) 0.37 {11.36} 5.35

Movement for the period {2020-21)

i R ised in
Opetmng dzftelrred R ised in Eczg::r ' Closing deferred tax
ax 855 eco,gm ! . Total movement | asset [ (Hability] as
(liability} as per profit or [oss comprehensive
B perind AS
Ind AS incame
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 0.38 597 - 5.97 6.35
Employee benefiis obligations - - .19 0.19 0.19
Employee stock option charges - - - - -
Gratuity and compensated absense 4.52 1.24 - 1.24 6.15
Pravision oh expected credit loss 6.24 1.78 - 1.78 8.02
ROU Asset 442 (4.12} - (4.12) -

Total 15.66 4.86 0.19 5.06 20.71




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued}
For the year ended 31 Muarch 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million}

2,33 Segment reporting

2.34

{A)

(8)

(c)

The Company has a single business segment.

The Company is in the business of providing custodial services and clearing and settlement
services for securities and financial instruments.

Since business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in [ndia, the Company is
considered to operate only in the domestic segment

Disclosure as required by indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

Names of related parties by whom control is exercised

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Upto March 26, 2021}  Ultimate Holding Company
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited (w.e.f March Parent of Holding Company
27, 2021 till March 31, 2022)

PAGAC Ecstacy Pte Limited (w.e.f. March 27, 2021) Ultimate Holding Company
Edelweiss Securities Limited Holding company
Names of related parties who exercise significant influence

Edelwelss Financial Services Limited (w.e.f. March 27, 2021}
Fellow subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions:

{f) Upto March 26 2021

£C Commodity Limited (refer note 2}

Ecap Equities Limited (refer note 2}

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited (refer note 5)
Edel Investments Limited

Edel Land Limited {refer note 2)

Edelcap Securities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte. Lid.
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited
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2.34  Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 : (Continued)

{C) Fellow subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions:
(i} Upto March 26 2021
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Securities And investments Private Limited
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Pte, Limited
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited
ESL Securities Limited
Edelweiss Alternative Assets Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited

{ii} w.e.f. March 27, 2021

Edelweiss Investment Advisors Pte. Limited
Edelweiss Securities {IFSC) Limited

ESL Securities Limited

Edelweiss Capital Services Limited
Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Asia Pragati Strategic Investment Fund
PAG Investment Advisors Pte. Ltd.

{D) Subsidiaries of entities exercising significant influence with whom the Company has
transactions:
EC Commadity Limited {refer note 2)

ECap Equities Limited (refer note 2)

ECL Finance Limited

£del Finance Company Limited (Refer note 4)
£del Investments Limited

Edel Land Limited {refer note 2}

Edelcap Securities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
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2.34

(D)

(E)

(F)

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 : (Confinued)

Subsidiaries of entities exercising significant influence with whom the Company has
transactions: {Continued)

Edelweiss Finvest Limited (formerly Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited} (refer note 4)
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited {Upto October 17, 2021)

Edelwelss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Key management persons with whom transactions have taken place
Mr. Dipesh Shah (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sandesh Sawant {Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. August 01, 2020)
Mr. Pradeep Khandelwal {Executive Director w.e.f. October 28, 2021)

Other key management persons
Mr. Shiv Sehgal {Non-executive director)

Key management person of holding company
Mr. Ashish Kehair {Managing Director & CEQ)




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
{Currercy : Indion rupees in millions)

Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2022

5r. No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current account transaction
1 Loan repayment aggregate to Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 1,156.90
2 EARC Investment sold to Edelweiss Securities timited - 528.94
3 Margin received aggregate from Edel Land Limited ** 4,626.83 2,199,33
Edei Land Limited ** 28,455.63 29,049,09
ECL Finznce Limited 12,254.27 59,842,2%
Ede! Investments Limited 12,883.71 1,165.14
Edel Land Limited 10,906.49 5,608.80
£delcap Securities Limited 12,8556.00 33,768.80
Edelwelss Broking Limited 140,366.80 182,320.34
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 63,707.27 18,392,13
Edelweiss Securities Limited 299,825 .87 18,003.09
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 0.31 3.70
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 48.87 599.67
£delweiss [nvestment Advisors Limited 572.11 0.00
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 3,037.88 202.54
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 850.10 1,633.93
Edelweiss Retaii Finance Limited - 7%.35
Edel Finance Company Limited®** . 11,981.72
4 Margin repaid aggregate to Edel Land Limited ** 5,125.65 1,696.46
Edel Land Limited ** 28,386.35 23,987.29
ECL Finance Limited 12,310.95 59,797.09
Ede! Investments Limited 12,327.75 1.079.65
Edel Land Limited 10,296.13 5,533.37
Edelcap Securities Limited 12,882.67 33,898.87
Edeiweiss Braking Limited 138,355.86 179,441.16
Edelwelss Finance & lavestments Limited 66,496.27 16,091.52
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 76.16 587.20
Edelweiss Securities Limited 300,199.40 18,289.56
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited G.47 345
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited # 569.67 0.00
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 3.037.38 202.40
Edalweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 886,10 1631.83
Edel Finance Company Limited*** .01 12,32938
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 70.65
5 Business Service Charges Income from Edelweiss Securities Limited 2.83 0.33
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited - G.20
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited # 1.03 ¢.00
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 242 .03
Edel Land Limited ** # - 0.00
Edelweiss Financiai Services Limited # 1.67 0.00
Edelweiss Broking Limited 7.58 0.04
ESL Securities Limited .98 -
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 0.32 -
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited # - 0.00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited # - 0,00
Edel Land Limited # - 0.0G
Edel Land Limited ** # - 0.00
Edelcap Securities Limited # - 0.08
ECL Finance Limited # - 0.0¢
Edelweiss Rurst & Corporate Services Limited - 0.05
Edel Investments Limited 4 - 0.06
Edelweiss Asset Recenstruction Company Limited - 0.24
Edel Finance Company Limited*** ¥ - 0.00




Edelwelss Custodial Services Limitad
{Currency: Indian rupees}

Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2022

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name Marech 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6 Clearing charges income received from Edel Land Limited ** 368 2.14
ECL Finance Limited 0.26 1.77
Ede! Investments Limited 1.12 0.08
Edel Land timited 1.65 0.94
Edel Land Limited ** 0.83 0.18
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,52 3.63
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 146 0.47
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited # 0.0 0.02
Edelweiss Breking Limited 27.60 19.08
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.02 0.09
Edelweiss Securitias and Investments Private Limited 0.06 0.11
Edehweiss Investment Advisors Limited 0.24 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.17 0.03
Edel Finance Company Limited* ** - 0.13
7 Chaperening fees paid 1o Edelweiss Investment Advisors Pte, Limited 94.25 60.562
Edelweiss Financial Services (UK) Limited 1430 -
Edeiwelss Securities {Hong Kong) Put Limited 41,60 -
& Demat charges received from Edel Finance Company Limited*** # - 6,00
Edel Land Limited ** - ¢.01
ECL Finance Limited # - 8,00
Edel Land Limited ** # - 0.00
Edel Investments Limited ¥ - 0.00
Edel Land Limited # 0.00
Edelcap Securities timited # - 0.00
Edelwelss Securities and Investments Private Limitad & - 0.00
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 1.95
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited # - 0.00
9 Trade exposure charges £del Finance Company Limited*** 31.97
Edel tand Limited ** 23.39 14.26
Edel Ltand Limited ** §97.84 144,13
ECL Finance Limited 0.21 10.45
Edel Investments Limited 78,76 4.08
Edef Land limited $5.17 €5.63
Edeicap Securities Limited 30.22 90.35
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited* - 0.00
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.56 0.16
Edelweiss Broking Limited 39.01 47.52
Edelweiss Securitles Limited 83.61 214.09
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited 4.98 5.37
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 6.59 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited a.34 115
Edelweiss Retail Finsnce Limited # - 0.00
10 Rating fees paid Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 8.02
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.03 2.03
11 Costreimbursement received from Edel Land Uimited ** # Q.00
£del Finance Company Limited*** - 0.02
£del Land Limited - 0.01
£deleap Securities Limited # - a.00
Edel lavestments Limited # - 0,00
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited # - 0.00
Lichen Metals Private Limited # 0.00
Edelweiss Gzllagher Insurance Brokers Limited - 3.11
Edelweiss Ratail Finance Limited - 0.01
Edelwaiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 2.78
Edelweiss Broking timited 88.15 1.86
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 28.40 0.33
Edetweiss Global Wealth Management Limfed iz1e 0.11
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited # 19.24 0.00
Edelweiss Asset Management timited - 0.14
Edelweiss Securities timited 30.81 -
£5L Securities Limited 11.36 -
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 1.89 -




Edelwaiss Custadial Services Limited
{Currency: Indion rupees)

Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 33, 2022

Sr. Nou

Nature of Transaction

Related Party Name

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

12 Cost reimbursement paid to

13 Custody Fees Income received from
14 Fund Accounting Fee Income received from
15 Interest Expenses onloan from

16 Interest expenses on margin placed by

17 Referral & Other Fees Income from

18 Referral & Other Feas expenses to

19 Membership & Subscription

26 Fixed Assels purchased from

21 Fixed Assets sofd to

£Edel Land Limited =*

tdelweiss Asset Management Limited
£delweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edehweiss Securities Limited

Edehweiss Housing Finance Limited

ECL Finange Limited*

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Edel Land limited

Edef Finance Company Limited

Edelweiss Asset b gement Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edalwaiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edel Land Limited #

Edel Land Limited **

ECL Finance timited

Edel Investments Limited

£del Land Limited

£delcap Securities Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edel finance Company Limited*=*
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited #
Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited #

Edefwelss Securities Limited

Edeiwelss Broking Limited
Edelwelss Securities Limited
PAG Investment Advisors Pte. Ltd.

Edelweiss Securities Limited

ECL Finance Limited #

Edel Land Limited **

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited #
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Galfagher Insurance Brokers Limited 4

Edet Land Limited ** #

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited #
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edeleap Securities Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited*** #

tichen Metals Private Limited &

£delweiss Asset Recanstruction Company Limited #

£del Land Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited #
Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brekers Limited #

Edelweiss Capital Services Limited

Edelwelss Rural & Carporate Services Limited #
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited #

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited #

Edehweiss Financial Services Limited #

75.72
8.76
96.81
26,35
G.26
0.04
Q.59
Q.26
2.40

0.2%

0.88

0.37
a.57
1092
398
0.01
1.55
306.01

0.24
0.16
23.85
0.28
0.04
101.13
61.71
24.12
12.00

£.00

0.02

0.64
0.c0
0.02

0.13

10.25
0.26
16.88
58.83
2.36
0.18
0.19
0.22
0.02

3.1
2,16
10.59

0.00
2,27
312,32
1.09
0.17
89.57
i77.76
2.76
1.45
5.58
0.c0
0.45
741

0.c0

69.03

a0
0.01
0.05




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
{Currency: Indion rupees)

Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2022

Se. No, Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
22 Expenses for employee stock option plans Edelweiss Financial Services Limited .25 1.94
£dehweiss Securities Limited 1,37 -
23 Expenses for employee Stock Appreciation Rights Edelweiss Financlal Services Limitad 178 2,74
24 Insurance premium paid to Edelweiss Securities timited 0.16 -
Edetweiss Tekle Life insurance Company Limited 1.80
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 1.24 -
25 Mediclaim expenses paid ta Edalwaiss Gererzl Insurance Company Limited 252 4,38
Edelweiss Financia Services Llimited - 1.04
25 CSH expenses paid to EdelGive Foundation 30.10 25.30
25 Branding fee paid to Edelwelss Securities Limited £.09 6.74
26 Security deposit paid to £del Land Limited ** 64.43 -
Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited B4.44 -
27 Slump Saje of Custody, SLB 2nd DDP business Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 101.15 -
28 Gratuity liability transferred to Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 2.67 213
Edelweiss Broking Limited .06 0,02
Edelwelss Finance & investments Limited 0.01 -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 4.05
Edelwaiss Securities Limited 0.74 0.18
29 Gratuity liability transferred from Edelwaiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 0.43 0,58
Edel Land Limited ** - 0.26
ECL Finance Limited - 1.3
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - 0.06
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.49
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.17
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.01
Edelwziss Gallagher Insurance 8rokers Limited . 0.58
Edelweiss Ratal! Finance Limited - 0.13
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 0.58
Lichen Motals Private timited - 0.24
30 Liguidity support feas to Asla Pragati Strategic Investment Fund 96.00 -
ESOP charge Reversal recovered (through Reserves &  Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.17
31 Surplus) -
SAR charge Reversal recovered {through Reserves & Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.88
32 Surplus) -
33 Managesfal remuneration (refer note 3) Key managerial personnel 26.04 17.21
34 saleof shares Key managerizl personnel 7.11 -
35 Interim dividend paid to Edelweiss Securities Limited - 999.67
Balances with related parties
36 Accreed interest expenses on margin placed by Edel Land Limited # 0.00 Q.00
Edel Land Limited ** 0.0% 0,65
ECL Finance Limited 6.5 3.87
Edel investments Limited 0.41 1.03
Edelcap Securities Limited # 0.c0 0.75
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.04 0.39
Edel Finance Company Limited* <* - 0.01
Edetweiss Broking Limited %1.68 80.03
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited* - 0.00
Edef Land timited # 0.60 0.13
Edelwelss Financial Services Uimited - 1.40
Edelweiss Securities Limited 8.65 3.92
Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited B 0.07




Edelwelss Custadial Services Limited
(Currency: Indion rupees)

Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2022

Sr. Mer, Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
37 Trade Payables to Edel Land Limited ** - 151
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.29 Q0.38
Edelweiss Housing Finance Uimited 0.02 a.02
Edchweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 8.66 5.59
Edelwelss Investment Advisers Private Limited - 48.40
Edelwelss Broking Limited 3,18 0.08
Ede! Land timited "~ # 0.00 0.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.i6 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.01
ECL Finance Limited* # - 0.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited* # 0.00
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP* #f - 0.00
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited # 0.00 0.04
Edelweiss Securities Limited 17.29 -
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Pte. Limited 26.06 -
Edelweiss Secutrities (Hong Kang) Pt Limited 4.65 -
Edelweiss Financial Services (UK) Limited 0.88
Edelweiss General Insurance Campany timited -0.08 -
Edelwelss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.33 -
Edel Land Limited 6.83
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 0.056
PAG Investment Advisors Pte, tid. 24,12 -
Asfa Pragati Strategic investment Fund 90.00
38 Trade receivables from Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 019 0.93
Edelweiss Securities Limited * # 1.15 0.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited 302 7
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 48144 0.04
ECL Finance Limited 124
Edelweiss Broking Limited 842
Edelweiss Retai Finance Limited 072
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 048 0.19
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited i.86
Edel Land Limited 190.87
ESL Securities Limited 1.07
Edel Land Limited ** 0.01 68.30
Ede! Land Limited ** # 0.00
39 Advances recoveratle in cash or kind Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 043 0.58
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 0.73
Edelweiss Securities timited - 1.26
ECL Finance Limited - 1.23
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.5
Edel Land Limited ** - 0.44
Edelwelss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited - 0.58
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.02 -
Edelweiss Alernative Asset Advisors Limited - 0.06
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.17
Edelweiss Tokic Life Insurance Company Limited - -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.59 -
40 Dividend payable Edelweiss Securities Limited - 3,51
40 Others payable Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 5.15 1.74
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 2.67 2.13
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.05
Edelweiss Securities Limited # -0.00 0.18
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.06 0.01
Edelweiss Securities Limited 211 -
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 001 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.44




Edelwelss Custodial Servides Limited
{Currency: indian rupees)

Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2022

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction | 3 Party Name March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
41 Margins payable to clients ECL Finance Limited 474.90 531.71
Edel nvestments timited - 138.63
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.47 27.76
Edel Land Limited - 101.77
Edelcap Securities Limited 91.98 218.55
Edelweiss Finante & Investments Limited - 2,310.37
£del Land timited ** - 10.18
E£del Finance Company Limited* ** - 0.01
Edelweiss Securities Limited 114.95 488,48
Edelweiss Comirade timited G.10 G.26
Edelweiss Braking Limited 9,039,24 7.028.29
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.50 1.50
Edelwelss Retail Finance Limited 947 -
Edelwelss Securitles and Investments Private Uimited 0.50 -
Edel investment Limited 694,58 -
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 4,80 2.36
Ede! Land Limited ** - 502.82
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 0.47
42 Cerporate gurantes received from Edelwelss Securities Limited 1,750.00 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Uimited £,950.00 14,500.00
43 Security deposit received from Edet Land Limied ** 54.43 -
Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 84.44 -
# Amount is [ess than % 0.02 million
Note 1 * Pertains to Wealth Management Business undertaking demerged from Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited and merged into Edelweiss Securities Limited.
Note 2 ** Pursuant to composite scheme of arrangement and amalgamation under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 as sanctioned by NCLT Hyderabad on
February 9, 2022 and as sactioned by NCLT Mumbal on February 10, 2022, Edel Land Limited {"Amalgamated or Resultant Company™), £ECap Equities Limited
{'Demerged Company - defined in the scheme as demerged undertaking and therby entire activities, business, operatiens, and undertakings of the Damerged
Company forming part of the Trading and Capitat Markets business) and £C Commodity Limited {*Amalgamating Company') has been amalgamated with effect from
April 01, 2020 ("the Appointed date”), The merger order has been filed with ROC an March 25, 2022, Accordingly, the financial statements of Edel Land Limited have
beer prepared taking inta account the effect of the composite scheme of arrangement and amalgmation and the said orders,
Note 3

Information relating to remuneration paid to key manageria? persen mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and deferred bonus
which are provided for group of employees an an overall basis, These are inckided on cash basis. The variable compensation included herain is on cash basis,

Note 4 *** Edelweiss Finvest Limited {formerly Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited) was merged into Edel Finance Company Limited with effect from April 09, 2021, Herze ali
related party transactions transacted during the year and the outstanding balances thereof, as at the end of the year relating to the Merged entity are considered to
be transacted with £del Finance Company timited and disclosed accordingly.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.35

Earnings per share

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 on Earnings per share as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the computation of earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) | Shareholders earnings 630.61 1,052.94
(as per Statement of Profit and Loss)
Less: dividend on preference share Nil Nil
including dividend distribution tax
Net profit for the year attributable to equity 630.61 1,052.94

shareholders
(b} | Calculation of weighted average number of - -
equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Number of shares outstanding at the 6,267,500 6,267,500
beginning of the year
Number of Shares issued during the year - -

Total number of equity shares outstanding 6,267,500 6,267,500
at the end of the year
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,267,500 6,267,500

outstanding during the year {based on the
date of issue of shares)

{c) | Number of dilutive potential equity shares - -
{d) | Basic and diluted earnings per share (in 100.62 168.00
rupees) (a)/(b)

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no diluted potential equity
shares.

Basic earning per share {EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

During EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company (after
adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in
each case, net of tax) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued]}
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.36

A.

Contingent liabilities, Capital commitments and lease arrangements

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Company has provided bank guarantees aggregating to X 10,695.00 million (Previous
year: % 6,945.00 million) as on 31 March 2022 to The National Stock Exchange of India
Limited for meeting margin requirements.

The Company has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating of X3,435.57 million
{Previous year: %1,544.84 million) as on 31 March 2022 for obtaining the above bank
guarantees as per sanction terms,

The Company has provided bank guarantees aggregating to %5.00 million {Previous year:
Z5.00 million} as on 31 March 2022 to The Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited for
meeting margin requirements.

The Company has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating of 2.55 million {Previous
year: Z0.50 million) as on 31 March 2022 for obtaining the above bank guarantees as per
sanction terms.

The Company has claims not acknowledged as debts of 22.50 million (Previous year:
%22.50 mitlion).

The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of
disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income under Section 14A of income
Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The company has filed
appeal/s and is defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate
proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors, company is reasonably certain
about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote

There are no obligations as on 31% March 2022 other than those disclosed above and in
note 2.2A.

Trading Member - V-Rise

During the year ended March 31, 2020, NSE Clearing Ltd {NCL) conducted an enguiry &
issued a show cause notice directing Group to reinstate the collateral (worth Rs. 293.3
million.) of V-Rise Securities Pvt. Ltd (Vrise) which were liquidated by the Group for non-
payment of obligation towards trades executed by Vrise. The Group had filed an appeal
against the impugned order of NCL with Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) and SAT by its
order had granted a stay on the matter till the appeal has been decided. The matter has
been listed for further hearing. The Group believes that the liguidation of collateral arising
on account of inability of Vrise to meet the outstanding obligations was in accordance with
the contracts executed with Vrise and applicable laws and regulations to Professional
Clearing Member {PCM) and accordingly, the Group has assessed such liability to be remote.
Accordingly, there is no adjustment required in the financial results for the year ended
March 2022,




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.36

A

Contingent liabilities, Capital commitments and lease arrangements (Continued)

Contingent liahilities {to the extent not provided for) {Continued]}
e) Trading Member - Indianivesh Shares & Securities Pvt Ltd.

In the month of March 2020, one of the client viz. Indianivesh Shares & Securities Pvt. Ltd
(Indianivesh} defaulted in its obligation towards Margin/MTM/other charges having a total
exposure of Rs. 977.4 million. The balance outstanding as at June 30, 2021 is Rs. 934.9 million.
The Group invoked collateral of Indianivesh in the form of encumbered fixed deposits worth
Rs. 1,007.5 million with HDFC Bank Ltd. by Indianivesh, which HDFC bank refused to honour.
The Group has filed an arbitration petition against HDFC Bank and Indianivesh with the Hon.
High Court — Mumbai and the court has granted an interim relief. The Group further filed a
Commercial Arbitration Application before the Bombay High Court under Section 11 of the
Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 for an appointment of a Sole Arbitrator. Bombay High
Court has appointed Justice S. . Vazifdar {Retd.) as a sole arbitrator to adjudicate the disputes.
Being aggrieved, Indianivesh has filed a Special Leave Petition before Hon'ble Supreme Court
challenging the said appointment. Subsequently Consent Terms were executed between ECSL
and Indianivesh by which all disputes and/or claims in respect of the aforesaid issues were
resolved. Accordingly, the Arbitration Petition filed by ECSL with the Bombay High Court
against Indianivesh and HDFC Bank Ltd. was disposed of vide order dated December 14, 2021.
Further Indianivesh had made an application to withdraw the SLP before the Hon'ble Supreme
Court which was withdrawn vide order dated April 28, 2022, The matter stands resolved as on
date.

f) Trading Member — Anugrah Stock and Broking Pvt. Ltd.

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited {'ECdSL'), a group company of Edeiweiss Securities Limited
{'ESL"), challenged an order, by an investigating agency, marking lien on its clearing account,
before the 47th Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate Court, Mumbai. Since the
investigation against the trading member Anugrah Stock and Broking Pvt. Ltd. (“Anugrah”}, for
which FCDSEL was a Clearing Member, is still under process, the said investigative agency
contended that it had no objection to setting aside the lien order upon ECDSL providing an
undertaking to keep sufficient assets unencumbered. ECDSLE has since provided undertaking to
keep sufficient assets amounting o Rs. 4,603.2 million belonging to ESL {Rs 662.5 million) and
other subsidiaries of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {Rs. 3,940.7 million), unencumbered
and the said lien order has been set aside. The matter has been listed for further hearing.

Various Arbitration/Writ Petitions have been filed before the Hon'ble Bombay High Court
{“Hon’ble Court”} by various end clients of Anugrah against Anugrah and its associates. ECDSL
has been made party to the same. All the Writ Petitions have been tagged together and
common orders have been passed. The matters are yet to be listed for further hearing.

EOW investigations at Cyberabad, Telangana and at Amravati are going on in the matter of
Anugrah. Further one end client of Anugrah had filed an FIR at Hyderabad, Telangana for which
investigation is under process.

ECDSL believes that it has acted in accordance with the agreement entered with the trading
member and in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Accordingly, there is no
adjustment required in the financial results for the year ended March 2022.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.36

Contingent liabilities, Capital commitments and lease arrangements (Centinued)

Capital commitment (to the extent not provided for)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided

for Rs. 1.78 million {previous year : Rs. 0.28 million).

Operating Leases

The Company has entered into commercial leases for premises. This lease has a life of five
years. There are no restrictions placed upon by the lessor by entering into these leases.

The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts relating to leases

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Depreciation on ROU of building 133.65 8.44
Interest cost 51.55 3.94
Expenses related to short term lease - -
Expenses related to low value lease - -
NMieasurement of lease liability
Particulars Amount
Opening lease commitment disclosed as at 31%° March 2021 -
Addition during the year 668.62
Accretion of interest 51.55
Payments {148.87)
Less: De-recognised during the financial year -
Lease liability recognized as at 31 March 2022

571.30

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-to-use assets and the movements during the
period:
Particulars Amount
As at 1% April, 2021
Opening (Transition to Ind AS) -
Addition during the year 668.62
Amortisation {133.65)
Write-off -
As at 31** March, 2022 534,97




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued}
for the year ended March 31, 2622

{Currency : Indian rupees in miilior)

2.37 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

Particulars March 31, 2622

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Tetal
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Stock-in-trade - 380.03 - 380.03
Total stock-in-trade - 380.03 - 380,03
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis - 380,03 - 380,023

March 31, 2021

Particulars
tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Stock-in-trade - - - N

Total stack-in-trade - - - -

Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis - - -
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Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million}

2.40

2.41

Cost sharing

Edelweiss Securities Limited being the Holding company ncurred expenditure like branding
fee, senior management cost, technology and administrative cost etc. which is for the common
benefit of itself and its subsidiaries and associates. These costs expended are reimbursed by the
Company on the basis of number of employees, actual identifications etc. On the same lines,
branch running costs expended (if any) by the Holding company for the benefit of its
subsidiaries and associates are vecovered by the Holding company. Accordingly, and as
identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 2.26, 2.29 and 2.31 include
reimbursements paid and are net of reimbursements received based on the management’s best
estimate.

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the erstwhile Ultimate Holding company (till
March 26, 2021) along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like Group Mediclaim,
insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its
subsidiaries including the Company. These costs expended are reimbursed by the Company on
the basis of number of employees, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, branch rumming
costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries and associate are
recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure
heads in note 2.26, 2.29 and 2.3] include reimbursements paid and are net of reimbursements
received based on the management’s best estimate.

Risk management framework:-
a) Regulatory controls
Introduction and risk profile

The Company's overall objective is to manage its clearing business, and the associated risks,
(such as credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk etc.) in 2 manner that
balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety and
soundness of the Company.

The Company is regulated by SEBI & respective exchanges with special focus on trade
clearing, client fund/security management, exchange & client reporting etc. The Company
strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance systemic & manual controls,
ongoing employee training and development and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

The Company has a well-defined risk management process framework for risk
identification, assessment and contrel in order to effectively manage risks associated with
the varfous business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk
group. At the Company level, there is a ‘Global Risk Group’ which is responsible for
managing the risks arising out of various business activities at a central level.

The Company’s multi-leve! risk management process ensures that the margin monitoring
processes withstand market volatility. As a result, the Company follows strict nzargin call
process and limits are set and monitored on an ongoing basis.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{(Currency: Indian rupees in million}

2.41

2.42

Risk management framework:- {Continued)

a) Regulatory controls (Continued)

b)

The Company’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. They are assisted in its oversight
raole by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the resnits of which are reported to the audit
cormumittee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a
segregation of responsibilities. Client introduction, client on-boarding, credit control
processes, centralised operations unit, independent internal auditors for checking
compliance with the prescribed policies/processes at each transaction level are all
segregated. The Company’s risk management processes and policies allow layers of
multiple checks and verifications.

Approach to capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management pelicy are to ensure that the
Group complies with externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company is regulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and various
Exchanges. It complies with the rules laid down by the regulator and the Exchanges.

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Share holders fund + Reserve — Intangible 2,933.19 2,302.60

assets {net-worth)

Debt Equity Ratio - -

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a
customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables. Company has
no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

The Company’s management policy is to closely monitor creditworthiness of counterparties
by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press release on regular basis.

The Company’s financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model are only short-
term trade and other receivables. All trade receivables are expected to be collected in less
than twelve months. Company applies the expected credit loss model for all financial assets
and simplified approach for trade receivables for recognition of impairment loss. Expected
credit loss allowance based on simplified approach in respect of receivables is computed
based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million}

2.42

2.43

A)

B)

Credit risk {Continued)
Market risks

Risk which can affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments due to adverse movements in market prices of instrument due to price risk.

The Company is a professional ciearing member, The client trades as execuied by broker
{trading member) are settled by the Company. The client & its broker keeps sufficient margin in
the form of cash, fixed deposits, bank guarantees, etc. as per the prescribed norms of the
exchanges. The same is onwards kept on the respective exchanges. Margin calls are made daily
in the normal course of trading hours so as to adequately cover client positions. All trades are
confirmed to automated straight through process to the client and/or its custodian. Default if
any devolves on either client or the custodian. Hence, there is no market risk to the Company
as a professional clearing member.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in prices of financial
instruments.

Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or anather

financial asset. Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company
could be required to pay its trade payables earlier than expected.

The Company’s policy is to satisfy redemption requests by the following means {in decreasing
arder of priority):

e Withdrawal of cash deposits

o Either disposal of other assets or increase of leverage

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, 19,03,114 equity shares of Edelweiss Finance &
Investments Limited have been pledged by Edelweiss Securities Limited for intraday facility
taken from ICICI bank, {outstanding balance Nil as at May 20, 2022).

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 1% - Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund and national pension scheme

Amount of £10.18 million (Previous year: ¥8.85 million) is recognised as expenses in “"Employee
benefit expenses” — note 2.29 in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expenses recognized in the
profit and loss account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for
the Gratuity benefit plan.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.43

B)

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits {continued)

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity {Continued)

Statement of Profit and Loss account

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 2.23 3.13
Interest on defined benefit obligation 1.00 1.13
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognized in the 3 )
year
Past service cost - -
Actuarial {gaihs) / losses - -
Total included in *Employee Benefit Expense’ 3.83 4.26
Balance Sheet
Details of provision for gratuity:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Liahility at the end of the year 23.41 23.06
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Difference - -
Unrecognized past service cost - -
Unrecognized transition liability - -
Amount in Balance Sheet 23.41 23.06
Of which, Short term provision 5.01 4.57
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Liability at the beginning of the year 23.06 16.49
[nterest cost 1.00 1.14
Current service cost 2.83 3.13
Transfer In / {Out) {3.04) 2.74
Past service cost (vested benefit) - -
Benefit paid {1.92) (1.20}
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 1.48 {0.79)
Liability at the end of the year 23.41 23.06




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in milfian)

2.43 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits (Continued)

B} Defined benefit plan — Gratuity (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Contributions by employer 1.92 1.20
Benefits paid {1.92} (1.20)
Actuarial {loss)/gain on plan assets - -
Actual return on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Experience Adjustment:
Particulars Asat 31 | Asat 31 : Asat 31 Asat 31 Asat 31
March 2022 | March 2021 | March 2020 | March 2019 | March 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation 23.41 23.06 16.49 12.63 7.59
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - - -
Surplus/{Deficit) {(23.41) {23.06) {16.49) (12.63) {7,59)
Experience Adjustment on Plan
Liabilities: {Gain} /Loss 1.86 {0.79) {1.07} (0.50) 0.25
Experience Adjustment on Plan
Assets: Gain/ (Loss) NA NA NA NA NA
Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate current 5.4% 5.0%
Salary escalation current 7.0% 7.0%
Eﬂn;;;lngve; ::Zratlon rate (based on categories) 25% 59,
- . [ALM 2012-14 {Ult.) | JALM 2012-14 {Ult.)
Expected average remaining working lives of
employees 3 years 3 years
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2.43

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits {Continued}

B) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity {Continued}

Movement on Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021

Balance st start of year {Loss}/ Gain {0.40} 0.36

Re-measurement on DBO - -

a. Actuarial {Loss}/Gain from changes in demographic

assumptions - 1.29

b. Actuarfal {Loss}/Gzin from changes in financial

assumptions 0.38 (1.27}

c. Actuarial {Loss)/Gain from experience over the past

years (1.86) (0.79)

Re-measurement on Plan Assets

Return on plan assets excluding amount included in

net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ {asset) - -

Balance at the end of year {Loss)/ Gain (1.88) (0.40)
Sensitivity Analysis

DOB increases / [decreases) by As at 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021

1 % Increase in Salary Growth Rate 0.83 0.91

1 % Decrease in Salary Growth Rate {0.79} {0.86)

1% Increase in Discount Rate {0.79} {0.87)

1 % Decrease in Discount Rate 0.85 0.54

1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate (0.05) {0.07)

1 % Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 0.05 0.07

Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) # 0.00 0.00

Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) # 0.00 0.00

# Amountis less than % 0.01 million
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022
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2.43 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits (Continued)

B} Defined benefit plan - Gratuity {Continued)

Movement in Surplus/(Deficit)

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

Surplus/ {Deficit) at start of year (23.07) {16.49)
Net (Acquisition)/ Divestiture - -
Net Transfer {In)/ Qut 3.04 {2.74)
Movement during the year

Current Service Cost {(2.83) (3.13)
Past Service Cost - -
Net interest on net DBO (1.00) {1.14)
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Re-measurement {1.48} (0.77)
Contributions/ Benefits 1.91 1.20
Surplus / (Deficit) at end of year {23.43) (23.07)

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the
Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and rules there under. The Ministry of Labour and
Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on 13 November 2020, and has invited
suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The
Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once the

rules are notified and become effective.

2.44 The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there are any material foreseeable losses.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.45  Corporate Social Responsibifity (CSR)
For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulars Mtarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company as 30.30 25.30
per the provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013
Amount spent {paid in cash})
i} Construction / acquisition of any assets Nil Nil
ii} On purpose other than (i) above * 30.30 25.30
Amount spent {yet to be paid in cash)
i} Construction / acquisition of any assets - -
ii) On purpose other than {i) above - -
Amount paid to EdelGive Foundation 30.10 25.30
* The amount spent towards corporate social responsibility as mentioned above has been
incurred towards various project in the area of Women Empowerment and Education.
2.46  Margin received from clients
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash margin 30,479.11 38,488.88
Nan-cash margin
- Securities® 74,130.41 50,523.05
- Fixed Deposits 22.42 2,926.84
- Bank guarantees 57.50 322.40
Total non-cash margin 74,210.33 53,772.33
Total margin received 104,689.44 92,261.22

*|ncludes the following:

a) Securities assigned under the “margin pledge” created in favour of the Company as non-
cash margin from the clients in accordance with the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP/CIR/P/2020/28 “Margin obligations to be given by way of Pledge/Re-
pledge in the Depository System” applicable effectively from September 01, 2020 and

¢) Securities received as non-cash margin from clients lying in the client demat account of the
Company for disputed cases.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.47

2.48

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID - 19 pandemic has affected several countries across the world,
including India. The Government is undertaking several measures to restrict the spread of virus
and provide financial support to some stressed sectors. Further, while the COVID-15
vaccination efforts have gained momentum, uncertainty due to the resurgence of COVID cases
across many parts of India is rising. The extent to which COVID-19 pandemic will impact the
Company, if any, depends on future spread of the virus and related developments, which are
uncertain at this point of time. There has been no material change in the controls or processes
followed in the closing of the financial statements of the Company. The Company’s
management is of the view that there is no material impact of the pandemic on its operations
and its assets as at March 31, 2022.

Discontinued Operations

The Company had entered into an agreement dated March 17, 2021 with Edelweiss Capital
Services Limited, an associate entity, to slump sell its business of being a custodian of securities
and designated depository participant, and securities lending and borrowing (‘Transfer
business’), for consideration as defined in the said slump sale has been effected as at June 18,
2021.

Basis above, the Company had classified net assets as at March 31, 2021, pertaining to the
Transfer business as ‘Assets held for sale’ in accordance with IND AS 105. Correspondingly, the
profit & loss and cash flows pertaining to the Transfer business have been presented as
‘profit/loss from discontinued operations’ and ‘Cash flows from discontinued operations’
respectively. Corresponding re-presentation has also been made for prior periods presented in
the statement of profit & loss and in the statement of Cash flows.

The details of Profit/loss from discontinued operations is as below —

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations

(a) Interest income 0.35 112.37
{b) Fee and commission income 41,04 196.21
Total Revenue from operations 41.39 308.58
Total Income 41.39 308.58
Expenses

(a) Finance costs - 42.41
{b) Employee benefits expense 23.78 68.77
{c) Impairment on financial instruments - 0.50
{(d} Other expenses 14.13 92.39
Total Expenses 37.91 204.07
Profit before tax 3.48 104.51
Tax expenses 0.88 26.30
Profit after tax 2.60 78.20




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: indian rupees in million)
2.48  Discontinuad Operations {Continued)

The details of net assets of transfer business is as below -

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents - 323.94
{b} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 214.30
{c) Receivables

{i) Trade receivables - 35.24
{ii) Other receivables - -
{d} Other financial assets - 151.66
Total financial assets - 725.14
Non-financial assets

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment - 1.78
(b) Other Intangible assets - 34.32
Total non-financial assets - 36.10
TOTAL ASSETS - 761.24

As at As at

LIABILITIES March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial liabilities

{a) Payables

(1) Trade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises - 331.79
(b) Other financial liabilities - 318.15
Total financial liabilities - 650,94
Non-financial liabilities

(a) Other non-financial liabilities - 9.00
Total non-financial liabilities - 9.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 659.94
NET ASSETS - 101.30
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Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in million}

2.51

2.52

Others statutory information

(i)

(i)

iii}

{iv)

(vi)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered
with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during
the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Rounded off
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest million as per the requirements of Schedule ill, unless otherwise stated.




Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

2.53  Previous year comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm 1o
current year's presentation / classification.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

[mfﬁ’% 3 ' )

g

Shrawan lalan Udit Sureka Shiv Sehgal
Partner Executive Director Director
Membership No: 102102 DIN : 02190342 DIN : 07112524

ndesh Sawant
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai Mumbai
May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022






